
From: Microsoft Outlook
To: mattd@djsinc.net
Subject: Undeliverable: Filed and Served Consent Agreement and Final Order for Dearwester Grain Services, Inc. (Canton, Illinois); Docket number: CAA-05-2025-0014
Date: Thursday, October 31, 2024 12:33:30 PM
Attachments: Filed and Served Consent Agreement and Final Order for Dearwester Grain Services Inc. (Canton Illinois); Docket number CAA-05-2025-0014.msg

Delivery has failed to these recipients or groups:
mattd@djsinc.net (mattd@djsinc.net) <mailto:mattd@djsinc.net> 
Your message couldn't be delivered. The Domain Name System (DNS) reported that the recipient's domain does not exist.
Contact the recipient by some other means (by phone, for example) and ask them to tell their email admin that it appears that their domain isn't properly registered at their domain registrar. Give them the error details shown below. It's likely that the recipient's email admin is the only one who can fix this problem.
For more information and tips to fix this issue see this article: https://go.microsoft.com/fwlink/?LinkId=389361.

Diagnostic information for administrators:
Generating server: DS0PR09MB10700.namprd09.prod.outlook.com

mattd@djsinc.net
Remote server returned '550 5.4.310 DNS domain djsinc.net does not exist [Message=InfoDomainNonexistent] [LastAttemptedServerName=djsinc.net] [CH1PEPF0000C0F8.namprd09.prod.outlook.com 2024-10-31T17:33:27.462Z 08DCF69075DB4900]'

Original message headers:
ARC-Seal: i=1; a=rsa-sha256; s=arcselector10001; d=microsoft.com; cv=none;
 b=okJW4sXCRz6Cf6IHd0PD74IcK5rb31tJVO6TpYOA8ntKtEf+K+kV8aafJjbefpx5/Iu/+olMoethh1IdIqtDa0RDfj7vd1vGrWzFSMC0KiQWf1WbIqmWXCRjV38U35yDGEd7NxG7wtWsK6Dzlc6zN9VEXulpdW49t4a+yXgP1z1jXTFIoikpgfvHsURnW8bKyJak++/kfPRIIPSLhR6RGbMxcX4a7cFS09V5mIf11y+qAC84NbLi/D40ra3YouyYHfjeTU8V0THhnHkPVXwtJ+uFgHeaTFH2rNZlHY2a45im+mMvfMRmDnQTWOtLZrIOncHlyZGDX91cFjwfULyixQ==
ARC-Message-Signature: i=1; a=rsa-sha256; c=relaxed/relaxed; d=microsoft.com;
 s=arcselector10001;
 h=From:Date:Subject:Message-ID:Content-Type:MIME-Version:X-MS-Exchange-AntiSpam-MessageData-ChunkCount:X-MS-Exchange-AntiSpam-MessageData-0:X-MS-Exchange-AntiSpam-MessageData-1;
 bh=aeGQJmBh1GJGHuToRAPRc4CejU4m/VxKxUkjrKU2Amw=;
 b=jPv+wyV2b3YIRrQfEzZvk88ZB1hHWV4we1IUT7FzrO8JOWHmy64y6KbG/1B6yhYek6TAdhEOLNiTPCkrGDagJMtjIZhVI6hgiKiKg7NGjiobpYmbjoV13L3c/frMVKi6kQy1DnJACN7LFFefMC1GFIM1Rxf2g85cxHimtd+xh5+qjoWlRqp1wG1CRhGTo6RhJdTpQf+8FS8B6QIyN+qJsJlUFHT3WZti8587lENNcP/t7/mPXAoMUVKswRKutp2pFqL1x/pzAKRi6SdO9Bg+vW5Qxdz+fng3yUrEvo8eyFiBEkwlb8QebI57zZLDBD9QsXfhDKC4ARnCJiWyZH3DyA==
ARC-Authentication-Results: i=1; mx.microsoft.com 1; spf=pass
 smtp.mailfrom=epa.gov; dmarc=pass action=none header.from=epa.gov; dkim=pass
 header.d=epa.gov; arc=none
DKIM-Signature: v=1; a=rsa-sha256; c=relaxed/relaxed; d=epa.gov; s=selector2;
 h=From:Date:Subject:Message-ID:Content-Type:MIME-Version:X-MS-Exchange-SenderADCheck;
 bh=aeGQJmBh1GJGHuToRAPRc4CejU4m/VxKxUkjrKU2Amw=;
 b=GTMNrK18cmsuuLk2In1C4RTaEGV/lqtw7o8q6CAjL6Y8ecylz0HHPpnw0uLzLynDFycvCRqmgmuRuuR6djcSdYCzDKceCA+8KoUeSW7FULHWM0S/9rDfPgR9e5ClAiKJ6Wg8y65WK/AAy35UOY1FEYroU3qf1JMqOxrhg7ndjug=
Received: from SA0PR09MB7193.namprd09.prod.outlook.com (2603:10b6:806:ac::23)
 by DS0PR09MB10700.namprd09.prod.outlook.com (2603:10b6:8:17c::21) with
 Microsoft SMTP Server (version=TLS1_2,
 cipher=TLS_ECDHE_RSA_WITH_AES_256_GCM_SHA384) id 15.20.8093.27; Thu, 31 Oct
 2024 17:33:23 +0000
Received: from SA0PR09MB7193.namprd09.prod.outlook.com
 ([fe80::7186:59f9:a67:ccb1]) by SA0PR09MB7193.namprd09.prod.outlook.com
 ([fe80::7186:59f9:a67:ccb1%6]) with mapi id 15.20.8114.015; Thu, 31 Oct 2024
 17:33:23 +0000
From: r5hearingclerk <r5hearingclerk@epa.gov>
To: "mattd@djsinc.net" <mattd@djsinc.net>, "LTrujillo@bhslaw.com"
 <LTrujillo@bhslaw.com>, "Coyle, Ann" <coyle.ann@epa.gov>, "King, Cynthia"
 <king.cynthia@epa.gov>
CC: CINWD AcctsReceivable <CINWD_AcctsReceivable@epa.gov>, "Chatfield, Ethan"
 <chatfield.ethan@epa.gov>, "Frank, Nathan" <frank.nathan@epa.gov>, "Breneman,
 Sara" <breneman.sara@epa.gov>, "Humphrey, Venise" <Humphrey.Venise@epa.gov>,
 R5AirEnforcement <R5AirEnforcement@epa.gov>, "Persoon, Carolyn"
 <persoon.carolyn@epa.gov>, "Martinez, Isidra" <Martinez.Isidra@epa.gov>,
 "Hill, Shatavia" <Hill.Shatavia@epa.gov>,
 "Yasmine.Keppner-Bauman@Illinois.gov" <Yasmine.Keppner-Bauman@Illinois.gov>
Subject: Filed and Served Consent Agreement and Final Order for Dearwester
 Grain Services, Inc. (Canton, Illinois); Docket number: CAA-05-2025-0014
Thread-Topic: Filed and Served Consent Agreement and Final Order for
 Dearwester Grain Services, Inc. (Canton, Illinois); Docket number:
 CAA-05-2025-0014
Thread-Index: Adsruf4HoqVmyEVwSU+k70RnvBrTaA==
Disposition-Notification-To: r5hearingclerk <r5hearingclerk@epa.gov>
Return-Receipt-To: <r5hearingclerk@epa.gov>
Date: Thu, 31 Oct 2024 17:33:22 +0000
Message-ID: <SA0PR09MB7193AD5D96E297D8F8A8282998552@SA0PR09MB7193.namprd09.prod.outlook.com>
Accept-Language: en-US
Content-Language: en-US
X-MS-Has-Attach: yes
X-MS-TNEF-Correlator:
authentication-results: dkim=none (message not signed)
 header.d=none;dmarc=none action=none header.from=epa.gov;
x-ms-exchange-messagesentrepresentingtype: 1
x-ms-publictraffictype: Email
x-ms-traffictypediagnostic: SA0PR09MB7193:EE_|DS0PR09MB10700:EE_
x-ms-office365-filtering-correlation-id: 1a950502-9a28-4288-555a-08dcf9d21e67
x-ms-reactions: disallow
x-ms-exchange-senderadcheck: 1
x-ms-exchange-antispam-relay: 0
x-microsoft-antispam: BCL:0;ARA:13230040|41320700013|366016|10070799003|1800799024|38070700018|8096899003;
x-microsoft-antispam-message-info: =?us-ascii?Q?yB19nOOxYMHGyn+RAa5p5TXdErwm3KxiakD3d1wG6uCzn7kMWt1R81j+8VY5?=
 =?us-ascii?Q?hxkmvxq0z9ZJddgEaAggSVg3nnrTG/llcqKCwY8paUBtO2gw8WR6jv5yLqdz?=
 =?us-ascii?Q?Dz65tn0akvhAhhZRS/TsgDHP6GqiKjJFtaLXgv2HlEioKIrO6C6uTSiVqCnH?=
 =?us-ascii?Q?ypsMZJJNJgtABwuKZb3GzxAtj+KyIIH3Ay1uXptOrCFwm/3yJ7A0FIYUhBYA?=
 =?us-ascii?Q?faBemU+CmWWeGAX+jtEU/bVWOogveXfDBV+31k+ENIYlaBnWUjaXowQbCClH?=
 =?us-ascii?Q?5wyVMWgGKaq/e85C2Rz02ol8E5MVd8d/1q+TsyxVoFV9W2kGD0Rl72OA7Ndi?=
 =?us-ascii?Q?zQ8yx/zQNX/cEJNaAhQHoc3a9wC+SJVYdQFCJ0NkDOvyFnJfnNihrOTVYT2K?=
 =?us-ascii?Q?vCRJsKNHT/XkL5Me2VCzGxwM83ko/4GdMBRiP7kUWgHB8r2rMnl8NzTJIaNY?=
 =?us-ascii?Q?G650AOiaBz1iTCDC/NzFcy2lLGP4ZeX/GhvUEUqDp12NFlnezJ4GQ9o8fmGu?=
 =?us-ascii?Q?va40gPBTTs5vRXqD4NN7qJiJ3338zCKhF/C1HuyU7UxiTcL3xRgMGhWHliBQ?=
 =?us-ascii?Q?L8CetEisqmQfpT6lFk+ftZzAxRlPoE/tKUT5Tzy0mB+f0/Q4UwcolAQk1i/n?=
 =?us-ascii?Q?c5EMTfmsvH9MnXTQkglXGH1yZUpQTHjh9LRBibK+CAoGsKxIx6wtkFNkmj6F?=
 =?us-ascii?Q?6mF3lu8/2RbRdrgWZWwlSCNfYwpmsQvUiMvOLlk8Hn39L15a30siLDWZjbTe?=
 =?us-ascii?Q?UuPiAASzZ+NgeAwJu1dAuTJSaE1yvpHddNBfvcEpJogbv0V6HHnVKu1pBYl3?=
 =?us-ascii?Q?AosJRWB3luYMRi+0v9ypk4QYwUB0lKzlpTa1a+JmK+1c/e9BiBkwqYQ3tJkN?=
 =?us-ascii?Q?bBuyer+X3irP7mGzfvKwMuql8zK3veTy2ib8rVkzeGrRwyioBbTuZvZeqzOc?=
 =?us-ascii?Q?T69PrtzkHx6sd9aaCZqDRWtCMzTUPsDws/zqaTOJEgZrfHi/fHwqXQg0I7+Q?=
 =?us-ascii?Q?UOLq71jZo9HG9OQ5lJq0xBN3xELJTSCTiS+vF0C+IUlWpbrDi9Ck7Y1i0/DJ?=
 =?us-ascii?Q?GQP0LAvnJEqlEdV/ekSj1Paoq+sqtcEJCoxf5tacmq7nQanoOl/UasodhOCS?=
 =?us-ascii?Q?rVPngSNrWSEk0LfogeOCwZxM5KtdGwCNl3ejL5A5p6PGkFPQxKUyyMNqw7cT?=
 =?us-ascii?Q?3EGXWYRfm2VaQ5tPYnWW5T618er/+2LOqd4OuRxBG7ViAoUxsqUw45jRORYP?=
 =?us-ascii?Q?etiVsF169T0WftCbs/b3?=
x-forefront-antispam-report: CIP:255.255.255.255;CTRY:;LANG:en;SCL:1;SRV:;IPV:NLI;SFV:NSPM;H:SA0PR09MB7193.namprd09.prod.outlook.com;PTR:;CAT:NONE;SFS:(13230040)(41320700013)(366016)(10070799003)(1800799024)(38070700018)(8096899003);DIR:OUT;SFP:1101;
x-ms-exchange-antispam-messagedata-chunkcount: 1
x-ms-exchange-antispam-messagedata-0: =?us-ascii?Q?1exQuHuYvVf4RGKVCDbq1w6Sz6BiUqEE9++b0Lk6CmnOp2TSbJBXFH6ZxfJp?=
 =?us-ascii?Q?hLsEoo9b3QdjjJ0b6kvleOSg/mqzSyuL20AiBaxS+CMZT0BDxEpGDMvXvxEl?=
 =?us-ascii?Q?8hobUKmp2xzr0HyG7vpFIbl81ZAsgAHzV1wxQU3RFLioDf2hSrpJJtuqwpCb?=
 =?us-ascii?Q?PhSMSLykAyPBxvWfgJG3DCM9+0qyQdH5bW13G7vZMjpGyJG17/H41n/csLjJ?=
 =?us-ascii?Q?1wqmobvHYgPFHgqL9JFqKMZ4u60W0HWm3nTO+NoXuTKQWt/DrH/zTPw3gjEk?=
 =?us-ascii?Q?GUP3X/IviLZXJ5F72rdz4uxHFyFu/SpXEyctl6uWSD4ip+PM3wpi5CLAmHze?=
 =?us-ascii?Q?4OnTnk5S9eH8UjecCQPUrH6ftQeVYyrF4MGV0qMnGI3bcAgOObBNQUyrAjVm?=
 =?us-ascii?Q?rFXm/6QX85HYMnom6J4Tews46vqARmugdimIN3LVv3MPwLr8WECykV2c5QrU?=
 =?us-ascii?Q?K8Fok7Al9Yjv4Q4oMbugIdO2j2bADbuDRAIO89d6/R+bHdP6KNrOKG1UExh6?=
 =?us-ascii?Q?AkbjAenYoTEO9wTG1M6KxVoefYa6LkiEJvLPWA5sq2S3eM8t89tXq4ZyXZ0F?=
 =?us-ascii?Q?cYQs0BwQKoZWSf9jMK/Melh9qpM4F/bd8LYo084BlFH9+g4/02HiUcL5VzTO?=
 =?us-ascii?Q?4ZfO4bVpst8V/jRb6FWtzEyV2oUM07UoCRJGE5vqKaQTDOQpJrGCajZaV9Lg?=
 =?us-ascii?Q?ZeajxR/OnDTA/r+SJjuGVR7SUE4gb/cl9EOaOreOkCEvTTJSqiKGmyHxDtGu?=
 =?us-ascii?Q?6VaXwtbbGpMF5q61uG6zc/f58dzFEjj/85ijnA/Yl6shTMLVGkVSuL/cLLb1?=
 =?us-ascii?Q?IuoIc4J7ycjDNW+suP28aeVDsuByxMlkv1oVEGeYu4eyO7IS/5sRf4gosf2Z?=
 =?us-ascii?Q?rEr78ADgz5spXoGposWcr+EV+zJzdxVWuFR1A9DFxeI4tMbqjF91mVzVGtc6?=
 =?us-ascii?Q?PBibJlVcdebdZIrSUWI8Rqo9ST2eKukLzFYWUDcTkleGFvSllAjfZUxfwMKS?=
 =?us-ascii?Q?pZKkBIhvhp1E8aFTcRkjU8zRnZfNpKg6cmGBJh1jVLyMkNCh5THbt+wSMH/J?=
 =?us-ascii?Q?aaiKAJguCpwj1t7hQgjM+BgTTypMtId8N4voKULKYrB2sad0JIWO1+ctSTFX?=
 =?us-ascii?Q?c+Mwmy+5RvMGyFXMSrEiUvk70uJ+v/aOx14l5Sz46IUDa40FNWhqZ+5qUX35?=
 =?us-ascii?Q?MlPpThqbapVUwNgTQ6rRssNeNPehh+v4PNw8Fa66fQYrBxfI2MmHuAMQrT5b?=
 =?us-ascii?Q?/YJTiJg6UV+4HS6hGpWvzP8n2fCcSjwWqBSQqLG7v1rUibAWzgV7ocLCH463?=
 =?us-ascii?Q?rrrfHIsHhiu5USM9KxNpVN7jOxlquUqPbpYLSyhRchdDracNtK9Q9HlLaEfx?=
 =?us-ascii?Q?FNxqJTK7yW8bkry08Yxteiv8NSVCKzkyX0MVNvKEtgI9hJZIRJRwm8OnkH/o?=
 =?us-ascii?Q?4P03X7LNNUBAnxGIgpHv70i6+kuHKg+B27DFjEaEGEhfuXBfiS4K9uavpUcC?=
 =?us-ascii?Q?nYGaZqEOCT7DPSwaQlcknXdtfKT6UjgD2OHofRgpaHsBOAHizWty7086oblA?=
 =?us-ascii?Q?lvP8yX+tqJcG1lfLxpL1/PekzsPjZMbOFXvQUwufR0C2SiYAeuz3vRjAkcQ3?=
 =?us-ascii?Q?2w=3D=3D?=
Content-Type: multipart/mixed;
 boundary="_007_SA0PR09MB7193AD5D96E297D8F8A8282998552SA0PR09MB7193namp_"
MIME-Version: 1.0
X-OriginatorOrg: epa.gov
X-MS-Exchange-CrossTenant-AuthAs: Internal
X-MS-Exchange-CrossTenant-AuthSource: SA0PR09MB7193.namprd09.prod.outlook.com
X-MS-Exchange-CrossTenant-Network-Message-Id: 1a950502-9a28-4288-555a-08dcf9d21e67
X-MS-Exchange-CrossTenant-originalarrivaltime: 31 Oct 2024 17:33:22.8156
 (UTC)
X-MS-Exchange-CrossTenant-fromentityheader: Hosted
X-MS-Exchange-CrossTenant-id: 88b378b3-6748-4867-acf9-76aacbeca6a7
X-MS-Exchange-Transport-CrossTenantHeadersStamped: DS0PR09MB10700

mailto:/O=EXCHANGELABS/OU=EXCHANGE ADMINISTRATIVE GROUP (FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=MICROSOFTEXCHANGE329E71EC88AE4615BBC36AB6CE41109EF7088051
mailto:mattd@djsinc.net
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Dear Matthew Dearwester,




 




The attached Consent Agreement and Final Order, docket number CAA-05-2025-0014, was filed today with the Regional Hearing Clerk, U.S. EPA Region 5. Also attached are a cover letter, certificate of service,

 and payment instructions developed by EPA’s Cincinnati Finance Division that are consistent with the EPA website link in the CAFO.




 




Please confirm receipt of this transmittal by replying to

r5hearingclerk@epa.gov.




 




Thank you,




Juliane Grange




 




Juliane Grange




Regional Hearing Clerk




United States Environmental Protection Agency, Region 5




Planning and Administrative Staff




Enforcement and Compliance Assurance Division




Phone 312-886-9868




Email

grange.juliane@epa.gov
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October 31, 2024 
 
 
VIA E-MAIL  
DELIVERY RECEIPT REQUESTED 



Matthew Dearwester 
President 
Dearwester Grain Services, Inc. 
709 Prairie Mills Road  
Golden, Illinois 62339 
 
Email:  mattd@djsinc.net  
 
Dear Matthew Dearwester: 



Enclosed is a file-stamped Consent Agreement and Final Order (CAFO) which resolves Dearwester 
Grain Services, Inc., docket no. CAA-05-2025-0014.  As indicated by the filing stamp on its first page, 
the CAFO was filed with the Regional Hearing Clerk on October 31, 2024. 



Pursuant to paragraph 28 of the CAFO, Dearwester Grain Services must pay the civil penalty within 30 
days of the filing date in accordance with the prescribed payment schedule.  Your payment method 
must clearly indicate the case name and case docket number.  



Please direct any questions regarding this case to Cynthia King, Regional Counsel, (312) 886-6831.  



Sincerely, 



Juliane Grange 
Regional Hearing Clerk 



 
cc: Ethan Chatfield/via electronic mail 



chatfield.ethan@epa.gov  
 
Yasmine Keppner-Bauman/via electronic mail 
yasmine.keppner-bauman@illinois.gov  





mailto:mattd@djsinc.net


mailto:chatfield.ethan@epa.gov


mailto:yasmine.keppner%E2%80%8B-bauman@illinois.gov





						2024-10-31T12:15:24-0500


			JULIANE GRANGE
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UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY 
REGION 5 



In the Matter of: ) 
) 



Dearwester Grain Services, Inc. ) 
Golden, Illinois ) 



) 
Respondent. ) 



Docket No. CAA-05-2025-0014 



Proceeding to Assess a Civil Penalty 
Under Section 205(c)(1) of the Clean Air Act, 
42 U.S.C. § 7524(c)(1) 



Consent Agreement and Final Order 



Preliminary Statement 



1. This is an administrative action commenced and concluded under Section 205(c)(1) of



the Clean Air Act (the CAA), 42 U.S.C. § 7524(c)(1), and Sections 22.1(a)(2), 22.13(b) and 22.18(b)(2) 



and (3) of the Consolidated Rules of Practice Governing the Administrative Assessment of Civil 



Penalties and the Revocation/Termination or Suspension of Permits (Consolidated Rules), as codified at 



40 C.F.R. Part 22.  



2. Complainant is the Director of the Enforcement and Compliance Assurance Division,



U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA), Region 5. 



3. Respondent is Dearwester Grain Services, Inc., a company doing business in Illinois.



4. Where the parties agree to settle one or more causes of action before the filing of a



complaint, the administrative action may be commenced and concluded simultaneously by the 



issuance of a consent agreement and final order (CAFO).  40 C.F.R. § 22.13(b). 



5. The parties agree that settling this action without the filing of a complaint or the



adjudication of any issue of fact or law is in their interest and in the public interest. 



6. Respondent consents to the assessment of the civil penalty specified in this CAFO and to



the terms of this CAFO. 
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Jurisdiction and Waiver of Right to Hearing 



7. Respondent admits the jurisdictional allegations in this CAFO and neither admits nor



denies the factual allegations in this CAFO. 



8. Respondent waives its right to request a hearing as provided at 40 C.F.R. § 22.15(c), any



right to contest the allegations in this CAFO and its right to appeal this CAFO.  Respondent waives any 



rights or defenses that Respondent has or may have for this matter to be resolved in federal court, 



including but not limited to any right to a jury trial, and waives any right to challenge the lawfulness of 



the final order accompanying the consent agreement. 



Statutory and Regulatory Background 



9. Title II of the CAA, 42 U.S.C. §§ 7521–7554, was enacted to reduce air pollution from



mobile sources. In enacting the CAA, Congress found, in part, that “the increasing use of motor vehicles 



. . . has resulted in mounting dangers to the public health and welfare.” Section 101(a)(2) of the CAA, 



42 U.S.C. § 7401(a)(2). Congress’s purpose in enacting the CAA included “to protect and enhance the 



quality of the Nation’s air resources so as to promote the public health and welfare and the productive 



capacity of its population,” and “to initiate and accelerate a national research and development 



program to achieve the prevention and control of air pollution.” Section 101(b)(1)-(2) of the CAA, 42 



U.S.C. § 7401(b)(1)-(2). 



10. Section 216(2) of the CAA, 42 U.S.C. § 7550(2) defines “motor vehicle” as “any self-



propelled vehicle designed for transporting persons or property on a street or highway.” See also 40 



C.F.R. § 85.1703 (further defining “motor vehicle”).



11. EPA promulgated emission standards for particulate matter (PM), nitrogen oxides (NOx),



and other pollutants applicable to motor vehicle and motor vehicle engines, including diesel engine 



vehicles, under Section 202 of the CAA, 42 U.S.C. § 7521. See the implementing regulations at 40 C.F.R. 
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Part 86. Vehicle and engine emissions standards “reflect the greatest degree of emission reduction 



achievable through the application of [available] technology.” Section 202(a)(3)(A)(i) of the CAA, 42 



U.S.C. § 7521(a)(3)(A)(i). 



12. Section 203(a)(1) of the CAA, 42 U.S.C. § 7522(a)(1), prohibits a manufacturer of motor



vehicles or motor vehicle engines from selling a new motor vehicle or motor vehicle engine in the 



United States unless the motor vehicle or motor vehicle engine is covered by a certificate of conformity 



(COC). EPA issues COCs to motor vehicle and motor vehicle engine manufacturers under Section 206(a) 



of the CAA, 42 U.S.C. § 7525(a), to certify that a particular group of motor vehicle and motor vehicle 



engines conform to applicable EPA requirements governing motor vehicle emissions. The COC will 



include, among other things, a description of the engines, their emission control systems, all auxiliary 



emission control devices, and the engine parameters monitored. 



13. Engine manufacturers employ many devices and elements of design to meet emission



standards. “Element of design” means “any control system (i.e., computer software, electronic control 



system, emission control system, computer logic), and/or control system calibrations, and/or the 



results of systems interaction, and/or hardware items on a motor vehicle or motor vehicle engine.” See 



40 C.F.R. §§ 86.094-2 and 86.1803-01. 



14. To meet the emission standards in 40 C.F.R. Part 86 and qualify for a COC, engine



manufacturers may utilize control devices or elements of design such as Exhaust Gas Recirculation 



(EGR), Clean Gas Induction (CGI), Diesel Oxidation Catalyst (DOC), Diesel Particulate Filter (DPF), and/or 



Selective Catalytic Reduction (SCR) systems. 



15. Engine and vehicle manufacturers may also employ engine fueling strategies, such as



retarded fuel injection timing, as a primary element of design to limit emissions of NOx. See 59 Fed. 



Reg. 23,264 at 23,418 (May 5, 1994) (“[i]njection timing has a very significant impact on NOx emission 
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rates, with advanced timing settings being associated with higher 



NOx . . . .”). 



16. Modern motor vehicles are equipped with electronic control modules (ECMs). ECMs



continuously monitor engine and other operating parameters and control emission control devices and 



elements of design, such as the EGR/CGI, DOC, DPF, and SCR systems and the engine fueling strategy. 



17. Under Section 202(m) of the CAA, 42 U.S.C. § 7521(m), EPA promulgated regulations for



motor vehicles manufactured after 2007 that require vehicles to have numerous devices or elements 



of design that, working together, can detect problems with the vehicle’s emission-related systems, 



alert drivers to these problems, and store electronically generated malfunction information. See 40 



C.F.R. §§ 86.005-17, 86.007-17, 86.1806-05. These devices or elements of design are referred to as



“onboard diagnostic systems” or “OBD” systems. 



18. Section 203(a)(3)(A) of the CAA, 42 U.S.C. § 7522(a)(3)(A), prohibits “any person to



remove or render inoperative any device or element of design installed on or in a motor vehicle or 



motor vehicle engine in compliance with regulations under [Title II of the CAA] prior to its sale and 



delivery to the ultimate purchaser, or for any person knowingly to remove or render inoperative any 



such device or element of design after such sale and delivery to the ultimate purchaser, or for any 



person knowingly to remove or render inoperative any such device or element of design after such sale 



and delivery to the ultimate purchaser.” This is also referred to as “tampering.” 



19. Section 203(a)(3)(B) of the CAA, 42 U.S.C. § 7522(a)(3)(B), prohibits “any person to



manufacture or sell, or offer to sell, or install, any part or component intended for use with, or as part 



of, any motor vehicle or motor vehicle engine, where a principal effect of the part or component is to 



bypass, defeat, or render inoperative any device or element of design installed on or in a motor vehicle 



or motor vehicle engine in compliance with regulations under [Title II of the CAA], and where the 
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person knows or should know that such part or component is being offered for sale or installed for 



such use or put to such use.” These parts or components are also referred to as “Defeat Devices.” 



20. The Administrator of EPA (the Administrator) may assess a civil penalty of up to $5,761



per motor vehicle, motor vehicle engine, or part or component up to a total of $460,926 against each 



violator for violations that occurred after November 2, 2015, and where penalties are assessed on or 



after December 27, 2023, pursuant to Section 205(a) and (c) of the CAA, 42 U.S.C. § 7524(a) and (c), 



and 40 C.F.R. § 19.4. 



Factual Allegations and Alleged Violations 



21. Dearwester is a company doing business in Illinois with its primary place of business



located at 709 Prairie Mills Road, Golden, Illinois 62339. 



22. Dearwester is a person, as that term is defined in Section 302(e) of the CAA,42 U.S.C.



§ 7602(e).



23. On February 13, 2024, EPA issued a Request for Information (Request) to Dearwester



pursuant to Section 208 of the CAA, 42 U.S.C. § 7542, requesting documents related to all heavy-duty 



diesel engine (HDDE)  motor vehicles owned, operated, and/or leased by Dearwester and the purchase 



of, and/or installation of, parts, components, and services which bypass, defeat, or render inoperative 



any emission control component, element of design, or emissions related part or component. 



24. On April 11, 2024, EPA received Dearwester’s response to EPA’s Information Request.



The response included invoices, receipts, and other records indicating that between January 1, 2018 



and December 1, 2021, Dearwester removed or rendered inoperative, one or more emission control 



devices or elements of design, including but not limited to, the EGR/CGI, DOC, DPF and/or SCR systems 



on at least 17 certified vehicle and engines owned and/or operated by Dearwester. 
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25. The parts and/or components removed or rendered inoperative by Dearwester were



intended for “motor vehicles” as defined by Section 216(2) of the CAA, 42 U.S.C. § 7550(2). Specifically, 



the parts and/or components are designed for use on makes and models of diesel-engine motor 



vehicles for which their respective manufacturers have obtained COCs establishing compliance with 



CAA emissions standards. Further, Dearwester knew or should have known that these parts and/or 



components were being used to bypass, defeat, or render inoperative the emission controls on motor 



vehicles and/or motor vehicle engines certified under the CAA. 



26. On May 8, 2024, EPA issued a Finding of Violation to Dearwester for knowingly removing



and/or rendering inoperative the EGR, DOC, DPF, SCR, catalyst, and/or OBD systems and tampering 



with the emissions-related elements of the ECM installed on or in motor vehicles or motor vehicle 



engines that were in compliance with Title II of the CAA, in violation of Section 203(a)(3)(A) of the CAA, 



42 U.S.C. § 7522(a)(3)(A). 



Civil Penalty 



27. Based on analysis of the factors specified in Section 205(c)(2) of the CAA, 42 U.S.C.



§ 7524(c)(2), the facts of this case and the cooperation of the Defendant, Complainant has determined



that an appropriate civil penalty to settle this action is $79,329. 



28. Penalty Payment.  Respondent agrees to:



a. pay the civil penalty above within 30 days after the effective date of this CAFO;



b. pay the civil penalty using any method provided in the table below.
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Payment Method Payment Instructions 
Automated 
Clearinghouse (ACH) 
payments made 
through the US Treasury 



US Treasury REX/Cashlink ACH Receiver 
ABA: 051036706 
Account Number: 310006, Environmental Protection Agency 
CTX Format Transaction Code 22 – checking 



In the comment area of the electronic funds transfer, state 
Respondent’s name and the CAFO docket number. 



Wire transfers made 
through Fedwire 



Federal Reserve Bank of New York  
ABA: 021030004 
Account Number: 68010727 
SWIFT address: FRNYUS33 
33 Liberty Street 
New York, NY 10045 
Beneficiary: US Environmental Protection Agency 



In the comment area of the electronic funds transfer, state 
Respondent’s name and the docket number of this CAFO. 



Payments made 
through Pay.gov 



Payers can use their 
credit or debit cards 
(Visa, MasterCard, 
American Express & 
Discover) as well as 
checking account 
information to make 
payments.  



• Go to Pay.gov and enter “SFO 1.1” in the form search box on
the top left side of the screen.



• Open the form and follow the on-screen instructions.
• Select your type of payment from the "Type of Payment" drop



down menu.
• Based on your selection, the corresponding line will open and



no longer be shaded gray.  Enter the CAFO docket number into
the field



Cashier’s or certified 
check payable to 
“Treasurer, United 
States of America.” 



Please notate the CAFO 
docket number on the 
check 



For standard delivery: 
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency 
Fines and Penalties 
Cincinnati Finance Center 
P.O. Box 979078 
St. Louis, Missouri  63197-9000 



For signed receipt confirmation (FedEx, UPS, Certified Mail, etc): 
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency 
Government Lockbox 979078 
3180 Rider Trail S. 
Earth City, Missouri  63045 





https://www.pay.gov/public/home


http://www.pay.gov/
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29. Within 24 hours of the payment of the civil penalty Respondent must send a notice of



payment that states Respondent’s name and the docket number of this CAFO to EPA at the following 



addresses: 



Air Enforcement and Compliance Assurance Branch 
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, Region 5 
R5airenforcement@epa.gov  



Cynthia King 
Office of Regional Counsel 
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, Region 5 
king.cynthia@epa.gov  



Regional Hearing Clerk (E-19J) 
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, Region 5 
r5hearingclerk@epa.gov 



30. This civil penalty is not deductible for federal tax purposes.



31. If Respondent does not pay timely the civil penalty, EPA may request the Attorney



General of the United States to bring an action to collect any unpaid portion of the penalty with 



interest, nonpayment penalties and the United States enforcement expenses for the collection action 



under Section 205(c)(6) of the CAA, 42 U.S.C. § 7524(c)(6).  The validity, amount and appropriateness 



of the civil penalty are not reviewable in a collection action. 



32. Respondent must pay the following on any amount overdue under this CAFO.  Interest



will accrue on any overdue amount from the date payment was due at a rate established by the 



Secretary of the Treasury pursuant to 26 U.S.C. § 6621(a)(2).  Respondent must pay the United States 



enforcement expenses, including but not limited to attorney’s fees and costs incurred by the United 



States for collection proceedings.  In addition, Respondent must pay a quarterly nonpayment penalty 



each quarter during which the assessed penalty is overdue.  This nonpayment penalty will be 10 





mailto:R5airenforcement@epa.gov


mailto:king.cynthia@epa.gov


mailto:r5hearingclerk@epa.gov
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percent of the aggregate amount of the outstanding penalties and nonpayment penalties accrued from 



the beginning of the quarter.  42 U.S.C. § 7524(c)(6)(B). 



33. Pursuant to 26 U.S.C. § 6050X and 26 C.F.R. § 1.6050X-1, EPA is required to send to the



Internal Revenue Service (IRS) annually, a completed IRS Form 1098-F (Fines, Penalties, and Other 



Amounts) with respect to any court order or settlement agreement (including administrative 



settlements), that require a payor to pay an aggregate amount that EPA reasonably believes will be 



equal to, or in excess of, $50,000 for the payor’s violation of any law or the investigation or inquiry into 



the payor’s potential violation of any law, including amounts paid for “restitution or remediation of 



property” or to come “into compliance with a law.” EPA is further required to furnish a written 



statement, which provides the same information provided to the IRS, to each payor (i.e., a copy of IRS 



Form 1098-F). Failure to comply with providing IRS Form W-9 or Tax Identification Number (TIN), as 



described below, may subject Respondent to a penalty, per 26 U.S.C. § 6723, 26 U.S.C. § 6724(d)(3), 



and 26 C.F.R. § 301.6723-1. In order to provide EPA with sufficient information to enable it to fulfill 



these obligations, EPA herein requires, and Respondent herein agrees, that: 



a. Respondent shall complete an IRS Form W-9 (Request for Taxpayer Identification



Number and Certification), which is available at https://www.irs.gov/pub/irs-



pdf/fw9.pdf;



b. Respondent shall therein certify that its completed IRS Form W-9 includes Respondent’s



correct TIN or that Respondent has applied and is waiting for issuance of a TIN;



c. Respondent shall email its completed Form W-9 to EPA’s Cincinnati Finance Center at



wise.milton@epa.gov, within 30 days after the Final Order ratifying this Agreement is



filed, and EPA recommends encrypting IRS Form W-9 email correspondence; and





https://www.irs.gov/pub/irs-pdf/fw9.pdf


https://www.irs.gov/pub/irs-pdf/fw9.pdf


mailto:wise.milton@epa.gov
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d. In the event that Respondent has certified in its completed IRS Form W-9 that it does



not yet have a TIN but has applied for a TIN, Respondent shall provide EPA’s Cincinnati



Finance Center with Respondent’s TIN, via email, within five (5) days of Respondent’s



issuance and receipt of a TIN issued by the IRS.



Other Conditions 



34. Within 90 calendar days from the Respondent’s signature on this CAFO, Respondent



shall remove from service any tampered vehicles or engines owned or operated by Respondent and 



will no longer operate such vehicle or engine until they have been fully returned to stock condition 



(i.e., all OEM emission controls reinstalled, including DPF, SCR, and EGR/CGI, and the ECM flashed to 



factory configurations). Within 30 calendar days of removing a vehicle/engine from service, any 



tampered vehicles or engines owned or operated by Respondent (including, but not limited to, the 



vehicles listed in Table 1 below) shall either be: 



a. permanently disabled (by cutting a 3-inch hole in the engine block) and scrapped; or



b. fully returned to stock condition (i.e., all OEM emission controls reinstalled, including



DPF, SCR, and EGR, and the ECM flashed to factory configurations).



Table 1 
Equipment# Serial # or VIN # 



No. 56 3HSCHAPR8BN386751 



No. 65 1XPWD49XXCD168908 



No. 66 3HSCHAPR0BN369734 



No. 67 2HSCUAPR18C565770 



No. 68 1XPHD49X0AD794019 



No. 70 1XPHD49X9BD131131 



No. 71A 1XPHD49X3BD110971 



No. 72 1SPHD49X0BD110894 



No. 75 1XPHD49X4BD133756 



No. 76 1XPHD49X3BD111344 
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No. 77 1XPHD49X6BD111354 



No. 80 1XPHD49X5AD105642 



No. 82 1XPBDP9X4FD276509 



No. 84 1XPHD49X3DD205517 



No. 85 1XPHD49X4DD195144 



No. 91 1XPHD49XXDD205661 



No. 92 1XPHD49X1DD205547 



35. Respondent shall provide receipts, invoices, photos, and other documentation verifying



that such work was completed within 30 calendar days from the completion of all work described in 



paragraphs 34 (a) and (b). 



36. By signing this Consent Agreement, Respondent agrees to the following: (i) Respondent



will not remove or render inoperative any emissions-related device or element of design installed on or 



in a motor vehicle or motor vehicle engine in violation of Section 203(a)(3)(A) of the CAA, 42 U.S.C.       



§ 7522(a)(3)(A), or direct any other individual or entity to do so; (ii) Respondent will not manufacture,



sell, offer for sale, or install any part or component in violation of Section 203(a)(3)(B) of the CAA, 42 



U.S.C. § 7522(a)(3)(B); and (iii) Respondent acknowledges receipt of EPA’s November 23, 2020 



“Tampering Policy: The EPA Enforcement Policy on Vehicles and Engine Tampering and Aftermarket 



Defeat Devices under the Clean Air Act1.” 



37. By signing this CAFO, Respondent certifies that as of the date of their signature on this



CAFO that there are no Defeat Devices in their inventory and/or possession (including, but not limited 



to, straight pipes, EGR delete kits, EGR block plates, ECM tuning devices, etc.).  



38. Within 14 calendar days from their signature of this CAFO, Respondent shall remove



from their webpages and any social media platform(s) all advertisements, photos, videos, and 



1 https://www.epa.gov/sites/default/files/2020-12/documents/epatamperingpolicy-
enforcementpolicyonvehicleandenginetampering.pdf  





https://www.epa.gov/sites/default/files/2020-12/documents/epatamperingpolicy-enforcementpolicyonvehicleandenginetampering.pdf


https://www.epa.gov/sites/default/files/2020-12/documents/epatamperingpolicy-enforcementpolicyonvehicleandenginetampering.pdf
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information that relate to performing tampering and/or selling, offering to sell, and/or installing of 



Defeat Devices except advertisements, photos, videos, or information relating to how to comply with 



the CAA. 



39. Within 14 calendar days from their signature of this CAFO, Respondent shall post a



publicly accessible announcement about Respondent’s settlement with EPA on Respondent’s current 



website homepage(s) and Respondent’s social media homepage(s), including, but not limited to, all 



Facebook, Twitter, Pinterest, and Instagram accounts associated with Respondent. The announcement 



shall remain posted for at least 60 calendar days from the date the announcement is posted. 



Respondent shall use the text contained in Appendix A (Announcement) in 12-point font, or another 



notice reviewed and approved by EPA, to provide such announcement. Respondent shall provide EPA 



with proof of posting the announcement within 30 calendar days from Respondent’s signature of this 



CAFO. 



40. In each report that Respondent submits to EPA it shall certify that the information



provided is true and complete by including the following statement signed by one of its officers: 



I certify that I am familiar with the information in this document and that, based on my 
inquiry of those individuals responsible for obtaining the information, it is true and complete to 
the best of my knowledge.  I know that there are significant penalties for submitting false 
information, including the possibility of fines and imprisonment for knowing violations. 



41. Failure to comply with paragraphs 36 of this CAFO may constitute a violation of Section



203(a)(3)(A) or (B) of the CAA, 42 U.S.C. § 7522(a)(3)(A) or (B), and Respondent could be subject to 



penalties of up to the statutory civil penalties in 40 C.F.R. § 19.4. 



42. By signing this Consent Agreement, Respondent understands that the violations



addressed in this CAFO may be considered as a “History of Noncompliance” for any future violations of 



Title II of the CAA, 42 U.S.C. § 7522(a)(3)(A) and (B), by Respondent or any other business entity owned 
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or operated by Matthew Dearwester, as addressed in the January 18, 2021, Clean Air Act Title II Vehicle 



& Engine Civil Penalty Policy.  



43. Respondent is informed and believes, and upon such information and belief certifies



that any material information or representation they have supplied or made to EPA concerning this 



matter was, at the time of submission true, accurate, and complete and that there has been no 



material change regarding the truthfulness, accuracy or completeness of such information or 



representation. EPA shall have the right to institute further actions to recover appropriate relief if EPA 



obtains evidence that any information provided and/or representations made by Respondent to the 



EPA regarding matters relevant to this CAFO, including incomplete responses to Information Requests 



and information about Respondent’s ability to pay a penalty, were false or, in any material respect, 



inaccurate. This right shall be in addition to all other rights and causes of action that EPA may have, 



civil or criminal, under law or equity in such event. Respondent is aware that the submission of false or 



misleading information to the United States government may subject a person to separate civil and/or 



criminal liability. 



44. For purposes of the identification requirement in Section 162(f)(2)(A)(ii) of the Internal



Revenue Code, 26 U.S.C. § 162(f)(2)(A)(ii), and 26 C.F.R. § 162-21(b)(2), performance of the Other 



Conditions Section above is restitution, remediation, or required to come into compliance with the law. 



General Provisions 



45. The parties’ consent to service of this CAFO by e-mail at the following valid e-mail



addresses: king.cynthia@epa.gov (for Complainant), and mattd@djsinc.net (for Respondent).  



Respondent understands that the CAFO will become publicly available upon filing.  



46. This CAFO resolves only Respondent’s liability for federal civil penalties for the violations



alleged in this CAFO. 





mailto:king.cynthia@epa.gov


mailto:mattd@djsinc.net
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47. The effect of the settlement described in paragraph 46, above, is conditioned upon the



accuracy of Respondent’s representations to EPA. 



48. The CAFO does not affect the rights of EPA or the United States to pursue appropriate



injunctive or other equitable relief or criminal sanctions for any violation of law. 



49. This CAFO does not affect Respondent’s responsibility to comply with the CAA and other



applicable federal, state and local laws.  Except as provided in paragraph 46, above, compliance with 



this CAFO will not be a defense to any actions subsequently commenced pursuant to federal laws 



administered by EPA. 



50. Respondent certifies that it is complying fully with Sections 203(a)(3)(A) and (B) of the



CAA, 42 U.S.C. § 7522(a)(3)(A) and (B). 



51. This CAFO constitutes an “enforcement response” as that term is used in EPA’s January



18, 2021, Clean Air Act Title II Vehicle & Engine Civil Penalty Policy to determine Respondent’s “full 



compliance history” under Section 205(b) of the CAA, 42 U.S.C. § 7524(b). 



52. The terms of this CAFO bind Respondent, its successors and assigns.



53. Each person signing this consent agreement certifies that he or she has the authority to



sign for the party whom he or she represents and to bind that party to its terms. 



54. Each party agrees to bear its own costs and attorney’s fees in this action.



55. This CAFO constitutes the entire agreement between the parties.











Dearwester Grain Services, lnc', Respondent



/o* tq-ed /
Date Matthew Dearwester, President



Dearwester Grain Services, lnc.
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United States Environmental Protection Agency, Complainant 
 
 
 
 
       
Michael D. Harris 
Division Director 
Enforcement and Compliance Assurance Division 
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, Region 5 
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Consent Agreement and Final Order 
In the Matter of:  Dearwester Grain Services, Inc. 
Docket No.  CAA-05-2025-0014 



Final Order 



This Consent Agreement and Final Order, as agreed to by the parties, shall become effective 



immediately upon filing with the Regional Hearing Clerk.  This Final Order concludes this proceeding 



pursuant to 40 C.F.R.  §§ 22.18 and 22.31.  IT IS SO ORDERED. 



__________________________ ______________________________ 
Date  Ann L. Coyle 
 Regional Judicial Officer 
 U.S. Environmental Protection Agency 
 Region 5 
 
 











Appendix A: 
Announcement 



 
On X Date, Dearwester Grain Services, Inc. (Dearwester) entered into a settlement with the 
United States Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) to resolve alleged violations of Section 
203(a)(3)(A) of the Clean Air Act, related to the removal or rendering inoperative of emission 
control devices installed on the heavy-duty diesel vehicles and engines in its fleet.  
 
By signing a consent agreement with EPA, Dearwester has certified that they will comply with 
Section 203(a)(3) of the CAA, which makes it unlawful for: “(A) any person to remove or render 
inoperative any device or element of design installed on or in a motor vehicle or motor vehicle 
engine in compliance with regulations under [Title II of the CAA] prior to its sale and delivery to 
the ultimate purchasers, or for any person knowingly to remove or render inoperative any such 
device or element of design after such sale and delivery to the ultimate purchaser; or (B) for any 
person to manufacture or sell, or offer to sell, or install, any part or component intended for use 
with, or as part of, any motor vehicle or motor vehicle engine, where a principal effect of the part 
or component is to bypass, defeat, or render inoperative any device or element of design installed 
on or in a motor vehicle engine in compliance with regulations under [Title II of the CAA], and 
where the person knows or should know that such part or component is being offered for sale or 
installed for such use or put to such use.” 
 
Dearwester will pay a civil penalty and comply with the consent agreement to ensure ongoing 
compliance with the Clean Air Act. 
 
If you have any questions regarding this announcement, please ask for Matthew Dearwester, 
president and owner of Dearwester. 
 
Thank you,  
 
 
 
Matthew Dearwester, President 
Dearwester Grain Services, Inc. 
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Consent Agreement and Final Order 
In the matter of:  Dearwester Grain Services, lnc. 
Docket Number: CAA-05-2025-0014 



 



CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 
 
I certify that I served a true and correct copy of the foregoing Consent Agreement and Final 
Order, docket number CAA-05-2025-0014, which was filed on October 31, 2024, in the 
following manner to the following addressees: 
 
Copy by E-mail to Respondent: Matthew Dearwester, President 



mattd@djsinc.net  
      
Copy by E-mail to   Cynthia King 
Attorney for Complainant:  king.cynthia@epa.gov  
 
Copy by E-mail to   Loraina R. Trujillo 
Attorney for Respondent:  LTrujillo@bhslaw.com 
    
Copy by E-mail to   Ann Coyle 
Regional Judicial Officer:  coyle.ann@epa.gov  
  



 
      
 
 
 



_____________________________________                                                                                                                                                           
Juliane Grange 
Regional Hearing Clerk  
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, Region 5 



 
 
 





mailto:mattd@djsinc.net


mailto:king.cynthia@epa.gov


mailto:LTrujillo@bhslaw.com


mailto:coyle.ann@epa.gov





			CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE





						2024-10-31T12:16:13-0500


			JULIANE GRANGE
















USEPA_AcceptedPaymentMethods.pdf




 
 



September 18, 2024 
 
 
 Accepted Payment Methods for United States Environmental Protection Agency 
  
Address format for standard delivery:  
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency 
 P.O. Box 979078 St. Louis, MO 63197-9000  
 
Address format for signed receipt confirmation (FedEx, DHL, UPS, USPS certified, registered, etc):  
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency 
Government Lockbox 979078 
 3180 Rider Trail S. Earth City, MO 63045 
  
Automated Clearinghouse payments (ACH)  
US Treasury REX/Cashlink ACH Receiver  
ABA: 051036706  
Account Number: 310006, Environmental Protection Agency  
CTX Format Transaction Code 22 – checking  
5700 Rivertech Court Riverdale, MD 20737  
 
Wire Transfers  
ABA: 021030004  
Account Number: 68010727  
SWIFT address: FRNYUS33  
33 Liberty Street New York, NY 10045  
Beneficiary: US Environmental Protection Agency  
 
Pay.gov (Credit Card, Debit Card, and bank draft)  
1. You DO NOT need a username and password or account.  
2. Enter SFO 1.1 in the form search box on the top left side of the screen.  
3. Open the form and follow the on-screen instructions.  
4. Select your type of payment from the "Type of Payment" drop down menu.  
5. Based on your selection, the corresponding line will open and no longer be shaded gray.  
6. Enter the docket number, invoice number or other corresponding information into the field.  
 
Any questions please contact Milton Wise (wise.milton@epa.gov).  
These instructions are valid until 09/30/2025. 
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